
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best                   Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner           Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, April 27, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Petralanda 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from Springview Elementary School will lead the audience in 
the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  

 
A) Yard of the Month – May 2015 – Adelaide and Paul Smith – 660 Nightingale 

Avenue 
 
B) Yard of the Month – May 2015 – Miami Springs Woman’s Club – 200 Westward 

Drive 
 

4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) April 13, 2015 – Special Meeting 
B) April 13, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None 

 
7. Public Hearings: None 
     
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
 
 A) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order 
to Howard’s Fertilizer & Chemical, utilizing Town of Davie Bid #B-14-25, in the amount of 
$10,000.00, for custom pre-emergent fertilizer blends as funds were approved in the FY14/15 
Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11(E)(5) of the City Code 



  
 B) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Aeration 
Technology, Inc., as a sole source provider, in an amount not to exceed $28,000, for aerating the 
golf course this summer as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 
31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 
 C) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order 
to Harrell’s utilizing Miami-Dade County contract #9020-1/19, in the amount of $8,000.00, for 
liquid fertilizer as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11(E)(5) of 
the City Code 
 
 D) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order 
to Growers Equipment Co., utilizing State of Florida contract #760-000-10-1, in the amount of 
$13,000.00, for the repairs done to the Kubota tractor at the golf course as funds were approved 
in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11(E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 E) Recommendation by Public Works that Council waive the competitive bid process 
and approve an expenditure to Computer Electric, on an “as needed basis” in the amount of 
$47.70 per hour, for electrical repairs as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant 
to Section 31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code and pursuant to the contract renewal option provided 
by the City’s existing contract/contract vendor for an additional one year period 
 
 F) Recommendation by Recreation that Council waive the competitive bid process and 
approve an expenditure to Firepower Displays Unlimited, LLC, in the amount of $15,000, for 4th 
of July Fireworks Display as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 
§31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Discussion regarding Aquatic Center current design and cost 
 
C) Recommendation that Council approve the execution of the Professional Consulting 

Services Agreement with Craven Thompson & Assoc., Inc. for Architectural, Engineering, 
Planning, Design and Staff Services Support citywide paid in accordance with the Hourly Fee 
Schedule "Attachment B" of the contract  

 
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 35-14, Membership In Retirement System; 
To Provide Any Newly Appointed Department Directors The Option Of Joining The City 
Employees Retirement System; Determination Of Retroactivity; Repealing All Ordinances Or 
Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective Date 
 
 B) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs Amending The Following Delineated Code Sections Contained In "The Miami 
Springs Retirement Ordinance" In Order To Comply With The Provisions Of The Internal 



Revenue Code; By Providing Additional Definitions In Code Section 35-04, Definitions; 
Supplementing The Provisions Contained In Code Section 35-18, Military Service Credit; By 
Correcting Certain Language And Providing An Additional Provision In Code Section 35-20, 
Normal Retirement; By Revising And Supplementing Provisions Contained In Code Section 35-
30.1, Limitation On Benefit; By Substantially Modifying And Updating Provisions Contained In 
Code Section 35-30.2, Distributions In Plan Years Beginning After December 3, 1984; By 
Creating New Code Of Ordinance Section 35-30.4, Miscellaneous; By Supplementing And 
Further Explaining Provisions Contained In Code Section 35-46, Direct Transfers Of Eligible 
Rollover Distributions; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective 
Date 
 
 C) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs Amending The Following Delineated Code Sections Contained In The “Police And 
Fireman Pension Plan” In Order To Comply With The Provisions Of The Internal Revenue Code; 
By Providing Additional Definitions In Code Section 35-51, Definitions; By Supplementing 
Provisions And Correcting Language Contained In Code Section 35-53, Benefit Amounts And 
Eligibility; By Providing Additional Substantive Provisions In Code Section 35-54, Optional Forms 
Of Benefits; By Supplementing A Provision In Code Section 35-54, Member Contributions; By 
Adding Additional Provisions In Code Section 35-58, Repeal Or Termination Of System; By 
Revising, Supplement, And Adding Provisions In Code Section 35-59 Miscellaneous; Repealing 
All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective Date 
 
 D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Providing For The Third Budget Amendment To The FY 2014-2015 Budget; By Reclassifying The 
Stafford Park Renovation Project From The General Fund Into The Capital Projects Fund; 
Recording The State Grant For The Senior Center Operations Fund; Increasing The General 
Fund From The City’s Designated Fund Balances To Fund Additional Purchases And Expenses 
Authorized By The City Council; Providing Intent; Specifying Compliance With Budgetary 
Processes And Procedures; Effective Date 
 
 E) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Amending The Schedule Of Golf Charges And Fees For The Operation Of The Miami Springs 
Golf And Country Club; Reserving The Right And Authority To Amend Or Supplement The 
Schedule Of Charges; Effective Date 
 
 F) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council The City Of The City Of Miami 
Springs Authorizing The City To Apply For, And Accept, If Awarded, A $30,000 2015 Urban And 
Community Forestry Grant With The State Of Florida On An Equal Or Greater Matching Amount 
Basis; Directing The Proper Officers And Officials Of The City To Execute The Grant 
Memorandum Of Agreement With The State Of Florida, Department Of Agriculture And 
Consumer Services, Florida Forest Service; Effective Date 
 
 G) Decision Regarding Advertising in the Conference Edition of the Quality Cities 
Magazine to Celebrate the Florida League of Cities 89th Conference in Hollywood, Florida to be 
Held During August 13-15, 2015 
 
 H) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Awnings 
Universal, the lowest responsible quote, in the amount of $6,500, for an awning to cover our lift 
station, pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code 



 I) Setting a date for a Special Meeting for Codes Review/Updating and Memorial Day 
Council Meeting Conflict 
 
11. Other Business:  
 
 A) Authorization to hire outside Counsel for pending election litigation  
 
 B) FY2014-2015 2nd Quarter Budget Status Report (Unaudited) 
 
 C)  Consideration of Rescheduling of Regular Council meetings to 7:00 p.m. on the first 
and third Tuesday of each month 
 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 

corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 
decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Adelaide & Paul Smith 
 

Of 
 

660 Nightingale Avenue 
 

for their home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
MAY 2015 

 
Presented this 27th day of April, 2015. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 

       City Clerk 



 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Miami Springs Woman’s Club 
 

Of 
 

200 Westward Drive 
 

for their yard being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
MAY 2015 

 
Presented this 27th day of April, 2015. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 

       City Clerk 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Monday, April 13, 2015 6:30 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:31 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman George V. Lob 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Chief of Police Armando A. Guzman 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
 
2. Invocation: Mayor Garcia. 

 
Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 

 
3. Resolution – A Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Miami Springs 
Canvassing Returns of the Miami Springs General Election of April 7, 2015 And Declaring 
Results Thereof 
 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the resolution in its entirety. 
 
Vice Mayor Windrem moved to adopt the resolution. Councilman Lob seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Windrem, Councilmen Bain, Lob, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
4. Closing Remarks from Outgoing Council members 
 
Vice Mayor Windrem said that he is very proud of what Council accomplished during the 
past two years.  He thanked the City Clerk’s Office for being organized, which helped him 
to digest all of the information in order for him to effectively do his job as Councilman. He 



 
 2 

thanked City Attorney Seiden, Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Alonso and City 
Manager Gorland for their assistance that helps Council make the best decisions for the 
City.  He thanked each Councilmember, Mayor Garcia, his friends, supporters and family 
members.  
 
Councilman Lob thanked his wife Nora for her support over the last six years.  He said that 
it was not easy making decisions and it had been hard for his family. He thanked the 
Administration and Staff and said that the City would not be what it is without them.  He 
thanked his fellow Councilmembers and supporters and said that he will be back. 
 
5. Administration of Oath of Office to City Officials 
 
Judge Charles M. Hill administered the Oath of Office to Vice Mayor Best. 
 
Judge Judith Rubenstein administered the Oath of Office to Councilwoman Roslyn 
Buckner. 
 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria administered the Oath of Office to Councilman Bain 
and Councilman Petralanda. 
 
Judge Judith Rubenstein administered the Oath of Office to Mayor Garcia. 
 
Closing comments were made by Vice Mayor Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia. 
 
6. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This___day of _______, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 

MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 

THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 

PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 



 
 3 

DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 

EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, April 13, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Chief of Police Armando A. Guzman 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
 
2. Invocation: Councilwoman Buckner 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from All Angels Academy led the audience in the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
 
3.  Awards & Presentations:  

 
A) Swearing-in Ceremony for Police Officer Jason Collado 

 
City Manager Gorland read a memorandum explaining a new procedure whereby each 
new Police Officer will be sworn-in during the City Council meetings. 
 
After welcoming remarks, Chief of Police Armando Guzman administered the Oath of 
Office to Police Officer Jason Collado. 
 

B) Unit Citation Award presented by Chief Armando Guzman 
 
Chief of Police Armando Guzman presented the Unit Citation Award to the midnight shift 
supervised by Sergeant Frank Perez for their excellent police work that resulted in the 
apprehension of a residential burglary suspect and recovery of several pieces of jewelry, 
computers, cash, collectables and property from two other residential burglaries. He 
commended Sergeant Perez and Officers Sandoval, Estok, Dweck and R. Castillo. 



 
 2 

C) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Suzanne 
Hitaffer in Recognition of 22 ½ Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs 
 
Mayor Garcia presented a Certificate of Sincere Appreciation plaque to Deputy City Clerk 
Suzanne Hitaffer in recognition of her service to the City from November 2, 1992 to April 
30, 2015. 
 
On behalf of the Administration, City Manager Gorland presented Ms. Hitaffer with an 
engraved crystal vase and City Clerk Gonzalez-Santamaria presented a bouquet of 
flowers. 
 
Ms. Hitaffer thanked the Mayor, Council and the Administration and introduced her 
husband who was present. 
 

D) Yard of the Month – April – Dee and Ninett Hernandez – 130 Flagler Drive 
 
Dee and Ninette Hernandez were not present to receive their Certificate of Recognition. 
 
4. Open Forum: The following members of the public addressed the City Council: 
Tony Lima of 841 Wren Avenue, Kim Werner of 1016 Meadowlark Avenue, and Cristina 
Medina of 260 Nahkoda Drive. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) March 23, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, 
which carried 3-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Councilman Bain, 
Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. Vice Mayor Best and 
Councilwoman Buckner abstained. 
 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  

 
A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of April 6, 

2015 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes.  

 
7. Public Hearings:  
  
 A) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The 
City Of Miami Springs Creating Code Of Ordinance Section 97-06; Long Term Resident 
Senior Citizen Tax Exemption; By Establishing An Additional Homestead Tax Exemption 
Available To Qualifying Senior Citizens; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances 
In Conflict; Directions To Codifiers; Providing An Effective Date 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the ordinance by title. 
 



 
 3 

Mayor Garcia opened the public hearing to anyone wishing to speak.  
 
Tony Lima of 841 Wren Avenue addressed the Council regarding this item and Assistant 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso will provide Mr. Lima with information in order to 
address his concerns. 
 
There were no additional speakers and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion. 
 
(Mayor Garcia called recessed the meeting at 7:53 p.m. The meeting was reconvened at 
8:01 p.m.) 
 
After discussion, the motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
 
 A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for March 2015 in the Amount of 
$13,520.25  
 
 B) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the 
issuance of a Purchase Order to Lou’s Police Distributors, Inc., utilizing the City if 
Hallandale Beach Bid #FY2012-2013-008, Uniform Purchase, in the amount of $22,000.00 
for a 12-month period, for police uniforms as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget, 
pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 C) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to the 
Miami Springs FOP Lodge #11 in the amount of $2,000, for the April 24, 2015 Charles B. 
Stafford Memorial Golf Tournament as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget 
 
 D) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to the 
River Cities Festival in the amount of $5,000, for the April 10, 2015 River Cities Festival as 
funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget 
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve consent agenda items 8A, 8B and 8C.  
Councilman Bain seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote 
was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, 
Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve consent agenda item 8D. Councilwoman 
Buckner seconded the motion. After discussion, the motion was carried 5-0 on roll 
call vote.  
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 

There were no appointments at this time. 
 



 
 4 

10. New Business:  
  
 A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 35-14, Membership In Retirement 
System; To Provide Any Newly Appointed Department Directors The Option Of Joining The 
City Employees Retirement System; Determination Of Retroactivity; Repealing All 
Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Seiden read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Attorney Seiden stated that newly appointed City employees to the positions of City 
Manager, Assistant City Manager, or Department Director following the enactment of this 
ordinance shall have the option of membership in the City Employees’ Retirement System 
or any other City approved retirement plan. He asked Staff to send the ordinance to the 
attorney for the Retirement Board for his review. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Vice Mayor Best seconded the motion. 
 
After discussion, Councilman Bain agreed to withdraw his motion and Vice Mayor 
Best withdrew his second and the item was tabled until the next meeting. 
 
 
 B) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for the 
Yard of the Month Awards for May, June, July, and August 2015 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the recommendations. Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
   
11. Other Business: None 

 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Seiden welcomed back Vice Mayor Best and newly elected Councilwoman 
Buckner.  He also welcomed Mayor Garcia, Councilman Bain and Councilman Petralanda 
who were re-elected to office. He wished them luck and encouraged Council to call him 
with any questions. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland congratulated everyone and said that he looks forward to working 
with the new Council.  He said that it is all about communication and he is always available 
to address any questions.  He thanked River Cities Festival Chairman Tom Curtis for a 
successful festival event that went smoothly with no issues. He pointed out that the new 
graphics were on the police car parked in front of City Hall. 
 
 
  



 
 5 

C) City Council 
 
Vice Mayor Best thanked the people responsible for electing him to office again. He likes to 
represent people and is fortunate to have good health that allows him to do this.  He said 
that the Administration for the City of Miami Springs is one of the strongest teams out of 
the 37 municipalities in Miami-Dade County; he is very proud and honored to be working 
with a team like this and ready to move forward. 
 
Councilman Bain asked the Administration to look into the possibility of having the City’s 
engineering firm re-evaluate the flood zones in the City, which could result in a savings to 
the residents.  By consensus, Council agreed. 
 
City Attorney Seiden informed Council that the City had not agreed upon a contract with 
the engineering firm and a survey will be conducted to determine if the hourly rates are in 
line with what other cities are paying. 
 
Councilman Bain wants to pursue a better way to get the Council meeting out to the 
community; a full Council meeting with no excerpts or anyone picking and choosing quotes. 
He said this election proves that a lot of people do not get the proper perspective of the 
Council meetings and what is presented here. He said that we might have to do it 
ourselves or give a team like the FIU people who do this and report for the City on a 
volunteer basis. Council has discussions and comments are made and when you go back 
and read the paper, there is only one sentence out of what was said that is presented.  The 
entire Council’s discussion should be presented so that people are aware of what really 
happens so that misinformation is not sent out to the public. This is something he wants to 
pursue for the next two years with the help of Public Information Specialist Carol Foster 
who might be able to do something or prepare something, but we can explore other 
avenues to come in here and report the Council meeting and get it out to the people. 
 
Councilman Bain extended congratulations to the Council and wished everyone a good 
evening. 
 
Councilman Petralanda thanked the residents and said that he is humbled and honored to 
be elected for another two years.  He is not considered a rookie anymore. He looks forward 
to working with the rest of the Council and the two new elected officials.  He thanked Tom 
Curtis for doing a wonderful job over the weekend with the River Cities Festival and looks 
forward to next year. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner thanked everyone for their faith in her and said that it would be a 
learning curve for the first couple of months.  She asked everyone to bear with her and said 
she would do the best she can. She looks forward to working with the other Council 
members. 
 
Mayor Garcia welcomed the newly elected Council members.  He said that his closing 
remarks are for the residents and his supporters that were standing side-by-side with him 
and supporting other Council candidates which might have been elected to office or not. 
This is not the type of job where you can say “something passed on Council but, oh yeah it 
passed, but I didn’t vote for that.”  Whether we like it or not, this is like a family; you might 
not like all your family, but you love the job you do and you love your family.  At the end of 
the day, everyone has one common goal and that is to do what is in the best interests of all 
of the residents of Miami Springs, not just for today, but also for the future. Not just the 



 
 6 

employees of the City, not just the residents, but everyone across the board.  We need to 
make sure we are doing a good job for everybody.  Regardless of differences of opinion, 
Council sits together as colleagues and he is hoping that by the end of the first term 
together, he can call everyone friends as well, because there is a better understanding of 
what Council does as elected officials. He thanked everyone for the opportunity to serve as 
Mayor once again. 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This___day of _______, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 

MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 

THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 

PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 

DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 

EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 















































    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  February 19, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia Juan Molina  04-30-2015  01-29-2015 01-29-2015 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016  04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Bill Tallman  04-30-2016  01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Vice Mayor Petralanda-Group 4 Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017  12-14-1998 04-25-2011 
Vice Mayor Petralanda-Group 4 Michael White*  10-31-2015  VACANT VACANT 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Connie Kostyra*  04-30-2015  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017  05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016  08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Vice Mayor Petralanda–Group 4 Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016  06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Charlene Anderson* 12-31-2016  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Windrem – Group 1 Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016  12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Richard Barnes  12-31-2016  05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Vice Mayor Petralanda Group 4 Roslyn Buckner  12-31-2016  03-26-2012 03-26-2012 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2015  02-17-2015 02-17-2015 
Councilman Windrem – Group 1 VACANT  05-31-2015  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Dr. Mara Zapata  05-31-2015  06-13-2011 06-13-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Ilia Molina   05-31-2015  02-05-2015 02-05-2015 
Vice Mayor Petralanda -Group 4 Kim Werner  05-31-2015  05-13-2013 05-13-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2015  02-13-1989 04-09-2012 
Councilman Windrem – Group 1 Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2015  04-27-2006 04-09-2012 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Lynne V. Brooks  04-30-2015  08-08-2011 04-09-2012 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Irene Priess  04-30-2017  08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Vice Mayor Petralanda-Group 4 Jean Ansbaugh*  04-30-2017  VACANT VACANT 
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016  04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Dr. Stephanie Kondy***** 04-30-2017  06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Clark Rinehart*  04-30-2015  VACANT VACANT 
Vice Mayor Petralanda-Group 4 Alexander Anthony 04-30-2016  08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 



* Connie Kostyra resigned on April 28, 2011. 
Charlene Anderson resigned on June 6, 2011. 
Michael White resigned on August 18, 2014. 

 Clark Rinehart resigned on January 10, 2015 
  Jean Ansbaugh resigned on September 10, 2014 
 
***** Recreation Commission – Council confirmation required per §32.05 (A)……… “No commission member who shall 

have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years 
thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be confirmed by a majority of the council.” 

 

















































 
   

 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. __________ -2015 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE 
SECTION 35-14, MEMBERSHIP IN RETIREMENT SYSTEM; 
TO PROVIDE ANY NEWLY APPOINTED DEPARTMENT 
DIRECTORS THE OPTION OF JOINING THE CITY 
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM; DETERMINATION 
OF RETROACTIVITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES 
OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; 
EFFECTIVE DATE  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City administration anticipates that there may be a need to 
hire new department directors in the upcoming years; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the advertisement of recruitment for new department directors 

should be as attractive as possible; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the current City Manager, Assistant City Manager, and Chief of 

Police have been provided with the option to participate in the appropriate City retirement 
system; and,  

 
WHEREAS, it is believed that by offering participation in the ICMA Pension 

Plan or some other City approved retirement plan the City will attract more qualified 
candidates for open director positions; and, 

 
WHEREAS, due to the nature and stature of City department director 

positions, it is appropriate to offer enrollment in alternative retirement plans to such 
candidates; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the amendment of the City 

Employees Retirement System Ordinance in order to allow the new department directors 
the option to participate in the ICMA Pension Plan, or some other City approved plan, is 
both proper and appropriate and in the best interests of the City and its citizens; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 
 
Section 1: That Code of Ordinance Section, 35-14, Membership in 

Retirement System, is hereby amended as follows: 

 



 
   

 2 

Sec. 35-14.  Membership in retirement system. 

(A) Eligibility.  All persons who are employees of the City on the day preceding 
the effective date of the retirement system, and all persons who become full time 
permanent employees of the City on or after the effective date of the system shall 
become members of the system. However, the membership of the system shall not 
include any employee who is employed in a position that normally requires less than 
1,000 hours of work per annum, nor shall it include any employee whose services are 
compensated wholly on a fee basis.  Not withstanding the foregoing, newly appointed 
City employees to the positions of City Manager, Assistant City Manager, or Department 
Director, following the enactment of this ordinance, shall have the option of membership 
in the City Employees Retirement System or any other City approved retirement plan, so 
long as a plan election is made within thirty (30) days of being hired by the City and it is 
understood and agreed by the employee that the plan election is irrevocable. 

 
(B) Determination of eligibility. In any case of doubt as to the membership 

status of any employee, the Board of Trustees shall decide the question, and the 
decision of the board shall be final. 

 
(C) Retroactivity.  Nothing contained herein shall in any manner modify or 

impact the retirement membership or status of any person employed by the City prior to 
effective date of the foregoing provisions. 

 
Section 2: Repeal of Conflicting Provisions. That all Ordinances or parts 

of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed insofar as they are in conflict. 
 
Section 3:  Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 

upon adoption. 
 

PASSED ON FIRST READING this ___ day of ________, 2015, on a motion made 
by _____________ and seconded by ___________. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this ___ day of _______, 2015, 

on a motion made by ___________ and seconded by __________. 
 

 
Vice Mayor Best  ___    
Councilman Bain  ___    
Councilwoman Buckner ___    
Councilman Petralanda ___    
Mayor Garcia  ___ 



 
   

 3 

 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
Words -stricken through- shall be deleted.  Underscored words constitute the amendment 
proposed.  Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.    – 2015 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
AMENDINGTHE FOLLOWING DELINEATED 
CODE SECTIONS CONTAINED IN "THE 
MIAMI SPRINGS RETIREMENT 
ORDINANCE" IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH 
THE PROVISIONS OF THE INTERNAL 
REVENUE CODE; BY PROVIDING 
ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS IN CODE 
SECTION 35-04, DEFINITIONS; 
SUPPLEMENTING THE PROVISIONS 
CONTAINED IN CODE SECTION 35-18, 
MILITARY SERVICE CREDIT; BY 
CORRECTING CERTAIN LANGUAGE AND 
PROVIDING AN ADDITIONAL PROVISION IN 
CODE SECTION 35-20, NORMAL 
RETIRMENT; BY REVISING AND 
SUPPLEMENTING PROVISIONS 
CONTAINED IN CODE SECTION 35-30.1, 
LIMITATION ON BENEFITS; BY 
SUBSTANTIALLY MODIFYING AND 
UPDATING PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN 
CODE SECTION 35-30.2, DISTRIBUTIONS IN 
PLAN YEARS BEGINNING AFTER 
DECEMBER 3, 1984; BY CREATING NEW 
CODE OF ORDINANCE SECTION 35-30.4, 
MISCELLANEOUS; BY SUPPLEMENTING 
AND FURTHER EXPLAINING PROVISIONS 
CONTAINED IN CODE SECTION 35-46, 
DIRECT TRANSFERS OF ELIGIBLE 
ROLLOVER DISTRIBUTIONS; REPEALING 
ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs “Retirement Ordinance” is under the 

constant review of the its Board of Trustees, plan administrators, and legal counsel to 
the Board; and,  
 

WHEREAS, at various times, as might be occasioned by changes in the law or 
other factors, those responsible for the System put its provisions under review; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the review of the “General Employees Retirement System” is 
sometimes performed by outside government agencies; and, 



2 
 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of a recent review, the “General Employees Retirement 

System” has received a Determination Letter from the Internal Revenue Service which 
requires certain amendments to the “Retirement Ordinances” in order to comply with the 
Internal Revenue Code; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Counsel for the Board and the Retirement System have provided 
the required amendatory provisions to the City for review and City Council approval; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has determined that the 
enactment of the required amendatory provisions is in the best interests of the City and 
its “General Employees Retirement System;” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 
 

Section 1.  That the following delineated Code Sections of “The Miami Springs 
Retirement Ordinance” are hereby amended as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I. – EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
  
Sec. 35-01. – Short title. 

 
Sections 35-01 through 35-45 may be cites as “The City of Miami Springs 

Retirement Ordinance.” 
 
Sec. 35-04. – Definitions. 
 
 For purposes of §§ 35-01 – 35-45, the following words and phrases shall have 
the following meanings ascribed to them respectively. 
 
 (A) thru (N) unchanged 
 

(O) Qualified Military Service.  Any service in the uniformed service (as 
defined in Chapter 43 of title 38, United States Code) by any individual if 
such individual is entitled to reemployment rights under such chapter with 
respect to such service (Section 414(u)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code). 

(OP) Regular interest. The rate or rates of interest per annum, compounded 
annually, as the Board of Trustees shall from time to time adopt for 
purposes of the definition of the term “actuarial equivalence.”  

(PQ) Retirant. Any member who retires with a pension payable from funds of 
the retirement system.  

(QR) Retirement. A member's withdrawal from the employ of the City with a 
pension payable from funds of the retirement system.  

(RS) Retirement system or system. The City of Miami Springs employee's 
retirement system, created and established by §§ 35-01—35-45.  



3 
 

(T) USERRA.  Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights 
Act (P.L. 103-353). 

 
Sec. 35-18. - Military service credit.  

 
(A) . . . . . .  
 
(B) . . . . . . 
 
(C) USERRA. Notwithstanding any provision of this plan to the contrary, 

effective as of December 12, 1994, contributions, benefits and service 
credit with respect to qualified military service will be provided in 
accordance with Section 414(u) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, USERRA, and the Florida Statutes, as applicable.   

 
(D) Death Benefits.  In the case of a death or disability occurring on or after 

January 1, 2007, if a participant dies while performing qualified military 
service (as defined in Section 414(u) of the Internal Revenue Code), the 
survivors of the participant are entitled to any additional benefits (other 
than benefit accruals relating to the period of qualified military service) 
provided under the plan as if the participant had resumed and then 
terminated employment by the City on account of death. 

 
(E) Differential Wage Payments.  For years beginning after December 31, 

2008, (i) an individual receiving a differential wage payment, as defined in 
Section 3401(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, shall be treated as an 
employee of the employer making the payment, (ii) the differential wage 
payment shall be treated as compensation, and (iii) the plan shall not be 
treated as failing to meet the requirements of any provision described in 
Section 414(u)(1)(C) of the Internal Revenue Code by reason of any 
contribution or benefit which is based on the differential wage payment.     

 
Sec. 35-20. - Normal retirement.  
 
 (A) . . . . . . 
 
 (B) . . . . . . 
 
 (C) . . . . . . 
 
 (D) . . . . . . 
 
  (1) . . . . . . 
 
  (2) . . . . . . 
 
   (a) . . . . . . 
   (b) . . . . . . 
   (c) . . . . . . 
   (d) . . . . . . 
    1.  . . . . . . 
    2.  . . . . . . 



4 
 

3. Any form of payment selected by a retired member must 
comply with the minimum distribution requirements of the 
IRC Internal Revenue Code Section 401(Aa)(9), and is 
subject to the requirements of subsection 29 thereof, e.g., 
payments must commence by age 70½. 

    4.  . . . . . . 
 

(E) Compliance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 414(k) and 414(i). 
 
To the extent required under the Internal Revenue Code, the DROP under the 
retirement system shall be treated as a defined contribution plan to the extent 
that the member’s benefits under the retirement system are based on the 
member’s DROP account.  The amount of “annual additions” (as such term is 
defined in Section 415(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code and Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.415(c)-1(b)) which may be allocated under the DROP to a 
member’s DROP account for a “limitation year” may not exceed the maximum 
permissible amount under Section 415(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.415(c)-1(a)(1) (the “Annual Maximum Amount”).  
For purposes hereof, the term “limitation year” means the twelve-month period 
beginning on October 1.  In addition, for purposes of determining a member’s 
Annual Maximum Amount, the member’s compensation shall be determined in 
compliance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.415(c)-2. 
 

 
Sec. 35-30.1. - Limitation on benefits.  

In no event may a member's annual benefit exceed the lesser of:  
(A) Ninety One hundred sixty thousand dollars (adjusted for cost of living in 

accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 415(d), but only for the 
year in which such adjustment is effective), or  

(B) One hundred percent of the average annual compensation for the member's 
three highest paid consecutive years; however, benefits of up to $10,000.00 a 
year can be paid without regard to the 100 percent limitation if the total 
retirement benefits payable to a member under all defined benefit plans (as 
defined in Internal Revenue CodeIRC Ssection 414(j)) maintained by the City 
for the present and any prior year do not exceed $10,000.00 and the City has 
not at any time maintained a defined contribution plan (as defined in IRC 
section 414(i)) in which the employee was a member.  

(C) If the member has less than ten years of service with the City (as defined in IRC 
section 415(b)(5) and as modified by IRC section 415(b)(6)(D)), the applicable 
limitation in division (A) or division (B) above shall be reduced by multiplying 
such limitation by a fraction, not to exceed one. The numerator of such fraction 
shall be the number of years, or part thereof, of service with the City; the 
denominator shall be ten years.  

(D) For purposes of this section, the Annual benefit means a benefit payable 
annually in the form of a straight life annuity with no ancillary or incidental 
benefits and with no member or rollover contributions. To the extent that 
ancillary benefits are provided, the limits set forth in divisions (A) and (B) above 



5 
 

will be reduced actuarially, using an interest rate assumption equal to the 
greater of five percent or the interest rate used in the most recent annual 
actuarial valuation to reflect such ancillary benefits.  

(E) If distribution of retirement benefits begins before age 62, the dollar limitation as 
described in division (A) shall be reduced actuarially using an interest rate 
assumption equal to the greater of five percent or the interest rate used in the 
most recent annual actuarial valuation; however, for plan years ending on or 
before December 31, 2001, retirement benefits shall not be reduced below 
$75,000.00 if payment of benefits begins at or after age 55 and not below the 
actuarial equivalent of $75,000.00 if payment of benefits begins before age 55. 
If retirement benefits begin after age 65, the dollar limitation of division (A) shall 
be increased actuarially using an interest assumption equal to the lesser of five 
percent or the interest rate used in the most recent annual actuarial valuation. 
For purposes of this section the Average annual compensation for a member's 
three highest paid consecutive years shall mean the member's greatest 
aggregate compensation during the period of three consecutive years in which 
the individual was an active member of the system.  

(F) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this plan, the retirement benefit of a 
member shall be reduced to the extent that it exceeds the amounts specified in 
Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code.  

 
Sec. 35-30.2. - Distributions in plan years beginning after December 3, 1984.  

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, a member’s benefits shall 
commence no later than April 1 of the calendar year following the later of (i) the 
calendar year in which he or she attains age 70 ½ or (ii) the calendar year in which he 
or she retires (the “Required Beginning Date”).  All distributions from the plan (including 
the DROP)_shall conform to the regulations issued under Section 401(a)(9) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, including the incidental death benefit provision of Section 
401(a)(9)(G) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Further, such regulation shall override any 
plan or DROP provision that is inconsistent with Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. Further, such regulation shall override any plan or DROP provision that 
is inconsistent with Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this plan to the contrary, a form of retirement 
income payable from this plan shall satisfy the following conditions:   Commencing with 
the first plan year beginning after December 31, 1984, the entire interest of a member 
shall either be distributed to him not later than April 1 of the calendar year in which he 
attains age 70½ or the calendar year in which he retires, whichever is later.  In the 
alternative, distribution shall commence no later than the above specified 
commencement date and be distributable over a period of time not exceeding the 
limitations hereinafter set forth: 

(A) If the retirement income is payable before the member’s death: 



6 
 

(1) It shall either be distributed or commence to the member not later than April 
1 of the calendar year following the later of the calendar year in which the 
member attains age 70 ½, or the calendar year in which the member retires; 

 
(2A)The distribution shall not commence later than the calendar year defined 

above; and (i) shall be paid over the life of the member or over the lifetimes 
of the member and the member’s spouse, issue or dependent, or (ii) shall 
be paid over the period extending not beyond the life expectancy of the 
member and spouse, issue or dependent. Distributions to a member shall 
not extend beyond the life of the member or the lives of the member and his 
designated beneficiary, or over a period not extending beyond the life 
expectancy of the member or the life expectancy of the member and his 
designated beneficiary. 

Where a form of retirement income payment has commenced in accordance with 
the preceding paragraphs and the member dies before his entire interest in the plan has 
been distributed, the remaining portion of such interest in the plan shall be distributed 
no less rapidly than under the form of distribution in effect at the time of the member’s 
death.     

(B) If the member’s death occurs before the distribution of his interest in the plan 
has commenced, the member’s entire interest in the plan shall be distributed 
within five years of the member’s death, unless it is to be distributed in 
accordance with the following rules:  
(1) The member’s remaining interest in the plan is payable to his spouse, 
issue or dependent;  
(2) The remaining interest is to be distributed over the life of the spouse, issue 
or dependent or over a period not extending beyond the life expectancy of the 
spouse, issue or dependent; and  
(3) Such distribution begins within one year of the member’s death unless the 
member’s spouse if the sole designated beneficiary, in which case the 
distribution need not begin before the date on which the member would have 
attained age 70 ½ and if the member’s spouse dies before the distribution to the 
spouse begins, this section shall be applied as if the spouse were the 
member.   If distribution has commenced to a member, and such member dies 
before receiving his entire interest, the remainder of such interest shall be 
distributed over a period at least as rapidly as under the method of distribution 
in effect prior to such member’s death (e.g., remainder of period certain basis). 

(C)  . . . . . . . 
 
Sec. 35-30.4.  Miscellaneous. 

 
(A) Upon the termination of the plan or on the complete discontinuance of 

contributions under the plan, each member shall have nonforfeitable, 100% 



7 
 

vested rights to benefits accrued to date of the termination or discontinuance to 
the extent funded at that time. 

(B)  No pension provided hereunder shall be assignable or subject to part of the 
corpus or income of the fund be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than 
for the exclusive benefit of members and their beneficiaries and until those 
liabilities are satisfied, all city contributions will remain in the fund for the 
benefit of the members or beneficiaries in the event the plan is terminated or 
city contributions cease.   

 
 
Sec. 35-46. – Direct transfers of eligible rollover distributions. 

(A) General. This division applies to distributions made on or after January 1, 1993. 
Notwithstanding any provision of the system to the contrary that would 
otherwise limit a distributee's election under this division, a distributee may 
elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the board, to have any 
portion of an eligible rollover distribution paid directly to an eligible retirement 
plan specified by the distributee in a direct rollover.  

(B) Definitions. For the purpose of this section, the following definitions shall apply 
unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.  
Direct rollover. A direct rollover is a payment by the plan to the eligible 

retirement plan specified by the distributee. Effective as of January 1, 2008, a non-
spouse Beneficiary may make a direct rollover only to an “inherited” individual 
retirement account as described in Section 408(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.  If 
a non-spouse Beneficiary receives a distribution from the Plan, the distribution is not 
eligible for a 60-day (non-direct) rollover.   

Distributee. A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In addition, 
the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse is a distributee with regard to 
the interest of the spouse. Effective as of January 1, 2008, an Employee’s or former 
Employee’s non-spouse Beneficiary is a distributee with regard to the interest of the 
Employee or former Employee.   

Eligible retirement plan. An eligible retirement plan is an individual retirement 
account described in section 408(a) of the Code, an individual retirement annuity 
described in section 408(b) of the Code, an annuity plan described in section 403(a) 
of the Code, or a qualified trust described in section 401(a) of the Code, that 
accepts the distributee's eligible rollover distribution. However, in the case of an 
eligible rollover distribution to the surviving spouse, an eligible retirement plan is an 
individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity. Effective for 
distributions made after December 31, 2001, an eligible retirement plan shall also 
mean an annuity contract described in Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code 
and an eligible plan under Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code which is 
maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or 
instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state and which agrees to 
separately account for amounts transferred into such plan from this Plan.   



8 
 

Eligible rollover distribution. An eligible rollover distribution is any distribution of 
all or any portion of the balance to the credit of the distributee, except that an 
eligible rollover distribution does not include: any distribution that is one of a series 
of substantially equal periodic payments (not less frequently than annually) made 
for the life (or life expectancy) of the distributee or the joint lives (or joint life 
expectancies) of the distributee and the distributee's designated beneficiary, or for a 
specified period of ten years or more; any distribution to the extent such distribution 
is required under section 401(a)(9) of the Code; and the portion of any distribution 
that is not includable in gross income.  

 
Section 2. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.  All ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
Section 3.   Effective Date.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 

upon adoption. 
 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING this    day of    , 2015, on a 

motion made by      and seconded by     . 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this    day of  , 2015, 
on a motion by     and seconded by    . 

 
Vice Mayor Best       
Councilman Bain       
Councilwoman Buckner      
Councilman Petralanda      
Mayor Garcia     

 
 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
      



9 
 

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Words -stricken through- shall be deleted.  Underscored words constitute the amendment proposed.  
Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ - 2015 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING THE FOLLOWING 
DELINEATED CODE SECTIONS CONTAINED IN THE 
“POLICE AND FIREMAN PENSION PLAN” IN ORDER TO 
COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE INTERNAL 
REVENUE CODE; BY PROVIDING ADDITIONAL 
DEFINITIONS IN CODE SECTION 35-51, DEFINITIONS; BY 
SUPPLEMENTING PROVISIONS AND CORRECTING 
LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN CODE SECTION 35-53, 
BENEFIT AMOUNTS AND ELIGIBILITY; BY PROVIDING 
ADDITIONAL SUBSTANITIVE PROVISIONS IN CODE 
SECTION 35-54, OPTIONAL FORMS OF BENEFITS; BY 
SUPPLEMENTING A PROVISION IN CODE SECTION 35-
55, MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS; BY ADDING ADDITIONAL 
PROVISIONS IN CODE SECTION 35-58, REPEAL OR 
TERMINATION OF SYSTEM; BY REVISING, 
SUPPLEMENT, AND ADDING PROVISIONS IN CODE 
SECTION 35-59 MISCELLANEOUS; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT; EFFECTIVE DATE  

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs “Police and Fireman Pension Plan” is 

under the constant review of the its Board of Trustees, plan administrators, and legal 
counsel to the board; and, 

 
WHEREAS, at various times, as might be occasioned by changes in the law or 

other factors, those responsible for the plan put its provisions under review; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the review of the plan is sometimes performed by outside 
government agencies; and, 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of a recent review, the “Police and Fireman Pension Plan” 

has received a Determination Letter from the Internal Revenue Service which requires 
certain amendments to the plan ordinances in order to comply with the Internal Revenue 
Code; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Counsel for the Board and the Plan have provided the required 

amendatory provisions to the City for review and City Council approval; and, 
 
 
 



 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has determined that the 
enactment of the required amendatory provisions is in the best interests of the City and 
its “Police and Fireman Pension Plan”: 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 
 

Section 1. That the following delineated code sections of the “Police and 
Fireman Pension Plan” are hereby amended as follows:  

 
ARTICLE II. - POLICE AND FIREMAN PENSION PLAN  
 
Sec. 35-50. - Establishment of plan.  

 
There is established a pension plan for police officers and regular full-time firemen.  

 
For purposes of §§ 35-50—35-59, the following words and phrases shall have the 

following meanings ascribed to them respectively.  
 

(A) Actuarial assumptions. The assumptions used for determining the actuarial 
equivalence of benefits under this system, specifically the mortality rates from 
the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table for males (except in the case of 
disability retirees, the mortality rates are set forward five years) and a discount 
rate of 8%. 

(BA) 
(CB) 
(DC) 
(ED) 
(FE) 
(GF) 
(HG) 
(IH) 
(JI) 
(KJ) 
(LK) 
(ML) 
(NM) 
 
(O) USERRA. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act 
(P.L. 103-353). 

 
Sec. 35-53. - Benefit amounts and eligibility.  
 

(A) thru (E) unchanged 
(F) Vesting 
 (1) . . . . . .  
 (2) . . . . . . 
 (3) . . . . . . 

 (4) Payments shall be made pursuant to paragraph (1)(a) above only upon 



 

the written request of the member in the form and manner determined by the 
Board. 

 
(G) . . . . . . 
(H) . . . . . . 
(I)   . . . . . . 
(J) Limitation on benefits.  

(1) In no event may a member's annual benefit exceed the lesser of: 
(a) Ninety thousand One hundred sixty dollars (adjusted for cost of living in 

accordance with IRC section 415(d), but only for the year in which such 
adjustment is effective), or  

(b) One hundred percent of the member's average annual compensation for the 
member's three highest paid consecutive years; however, benefits of up to 
$10,000.00 a year can be paid without regard to the 100 percent limitation if 
the total retirement benefits payable to an employee under all defined benefit 
plans (as defined in IRC section 414(j)) maintained by the employer for the 
present and any prior year do not exceed $10,000.00 and the employer has 
not at any time maintained a defined contribution plan (as defined in IRC 
section 414(i)) in which the employee was a participant. 

 (2) . . . . . . 
 (3) . . . . . . 

(4) If distribution of retirement benefits begins before age 62, the dollar limitation 
as described in division (J)(1)(a) shall be reduced actuarially using an 
interest rate assumption equal to the greater of five percent or the interest 
rate used in the most recent annual actuarial valuation; however, for plan 
years ending on or before December 31, 2001, for plan years ending on or 
before December 31, 2001, retirement benefits shall not be reduced below 
$75,000.00 if payment of benefits begins at or after age 55 and not below the 
actuarial equivalent of $75,000.00 if payment of benefits begins before age 
55. If retirement benefits begin after age 65, the dollar limitation of division 
(J)(1)(a) shall be increased actuarially using an interest assumption equal to 
the lesser of five percent or the interest rate used in the most recent annual 
actuarial valuation.  

(5) For this division (J) the "average annual compensation for a member's three 
highest paid consecutive years" shall mean the member's greatest 
aggregate compensation during the period of three consecutive years in 
which the individual was an active member of the system. 

(6) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this plan, the retirement benefit of a 
member shall be reduced to the extent that it exceeds amounts specified in 
Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

(K) . . . . . . 
(L) Deferred retirement option plan (“DROP”) 
 (1) . . . . . . 
 (2) Compliance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 414(k) ad 414(i). 

 To the extent required under the Internal Revenue Code, the DROP under 
the retirement system shall be treated as a defined contribution plan to the 
extent that the member’s benefits under the retirement system are based on 
the member’s DROP account. The amount of “annual additions” (as such 



 

term is defined in Section 415(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.415(c)-1(b)) which may be allocated under 
the DROP to a member’s DROP account for a “limitation year” may not 
exceed the maximum permissible member’s DROP account under Section 
415(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and Treasury Regulations Section 
1.415(c)-1(a)(1) (the “Annual Maximum Amount”). For purposes hereof, the 
term “limitation year” means the twelve-month period beginning on October 
1. In addition, for purposes of determining a member’s Annual Maximum 
Amount, the member’s compensation shall be determined in compliance with 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.415(c)-2. 

 
 

(M) Death Benefits for Death during Qualified Military Service.  In the case of a 
death or disability occurring on or after January 1, 2007, if a participant dies 
while performing qualified military service (as defined in Section 414(u) of the 
Internal Revenue Code), the survivors of the participant are entitled to any 
additional benefits (other than benefit accruals relating to the period of qualified 
military service) provided under the plan as if the participant had resumed and 
then terminated employment by the City on account of death.   

(N) Differential Wage Payments.  For years beginning after December 31, 2008, (i) 
an individual receiving a differential wage payment, as defined in Section 
3401(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, shall be treated as an employee of 
the employer making the payment, (ii) the differential wage payment shall be 
treated as compensation, and (iii) the plan shall not be treated as failing to 
meet the requirements of any provision described in Section 414(u)(1)(C) of the 
Internal Revenue Code by reason of any contribution or benefit which is based 
on the differential wage payment. 

 
Sec. 35-54. - Optional forms of benefits. 
 

(A) . . . . . . 
(B) . . . . . . 
(C) . . . . . . 
(D). . . . . . 
(E) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, a member’s benefits shall 

commence no later than April 1 of the calendar year following the later of (i) 
the calendar year in which he or she attains age 70 ½ or (ii) the calendar 
year in which he or she retires (the “Required Beginning Date”).  All 
distributions from the plan (including the DROP) shall conform to the 
regulations issued under Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code, 
including the incidental death benefit provision of Section 401(a)(9)(G) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.  Further, such regulation shall override any plan or 
DROP provision that is inconsistent with Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this plan to the contrary, a form of 
retirement income payable from this plan shall satisfy the following 
conditions:  

 (1)  If the retirement income is payable before the member’s death: 



 

(a)   It shall either be distributed or commence to the member not 
later than April 1 of the calendar year following the later of the 
calendar year in which the member attains age 70 ½, or the 
calendar year in which the member retires; 

(b)   The distribution shall commence not later than the calendar year 
defined above; and (i) shall be paid over the life of the member 
of over the lifetimes of the member and spouse, issue or 
dependent, or (ii) shall be paid over the period extending not 
beyond the life expectancy of the member and spouse, issue or 
dependent.   

 Where a form of retirement income payment has commenced in accordance 
with the preceding paragraphs and the member dies before his entire interest in 
the plan has been distributed, the remaining portion of such interest in the plan 
shall be distributed no less rapidly than under the form of distribution in effect at 
the time of the member’s death.   

(2) If the member’s death occurs before the distribution of his interest in 
the plan has commenced, the member’s entire interest in the plan shall 
be distributed within five years of the member’s death, unless it is to be 
distributed in accordance with the following rules:  
(a)   The member’s remaining interest in the plan is payable to his 

spouse, issue or dependent;   
(b) The remaining interest is to be distributed over the life of the 

spouse, issue or dependent or over a period not extending beyond 
the life expectancy of the spouse, issue or dependent; and 

(c) Such distribution begins within one year of the member’s death 
unless the member’s spouse is the sole designated beneficiary, in 
which case the distribution need not begin before the date on 
which the member would have attained age 70 ½ and if the 
member’s spouse dies before the distribution to the spouse 
begins, this section shall be applied as if the spouse were the 
member.   

 
Sec. 35-55. - Contributions.  

(A) Member contributions.  
(1) Amount. Members of the system shall make regular contributions to the fund 

equal to nine percent of their respective earnings. The contribution rate shall be subject to 
division (C) below. The City agrees to assume and pay member contributions in lieu of 
direct contributions by the members, such contributions shall accordingly be paid into the 
system in behalf of the members. The City shall, solely for the purpose of compliance with 
Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code, pick up members contributions required to 
be made by members on earnings paid with respect to payroll periods upon this section 



 

becoming effective. No member subject to such agreement shall have the option of 
choosing to receive the contributed amounts directly instead of having them paid by the 
City directly to the system. All such contributions by the City shall be deemed and 
considered as member accumulated contributions and subject to all provisions of this 
system pertaining to accumulated contributions of members. 
 
Sec. 35-58. - Repeal or termination of system.  

(A) . . . . . .  
(B) . . . . . . 
(C) . . . . . . 
(D) . . . . . . 
(E) No pension provided hereunder shall be assignable or any part of the corpus 

or income of the fund be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than for the 
exclusive benefit of members and their beneficiaries and until those liabilities 
are satisfied, all City contributions will remain in the fund for the benefit of the 
members or beneficiaries in the event the plan is terminated or City 
contributions cease.   

(F) USERRA.  Notwithstanding any provision of this plan to the contrary, effective 
as of December 12, 1994, contributions, benefits and service credit with 
respect to qualified military service will be provided in accordance with Section 
414(u) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, USERRA, and 
Chapters 175 and 185, Florida Statutes, as applicable. 
 

Sec. 35-59. - Miscellaneous. 
(A) 
(B) 
(C) 
(D) 
(E) 
(F) 
 (1). . . . . . 
 (2). . . . . . 
  (a) . . . . . . 

(b) Eligible retirement plan. An eligible retirement plan is an individual 
retirement account described in section 408(a) of the Code, an annuity 
plan described in section 403(a) of the Code, or a qualified trust 
described in section 401(a) of the Code, or a qualified trust described in 
section 401(a) of the Code, that accepts the distributee's eligible rollover 
distribution.  However, in the case of an eligible rollover distribution to 
the surviving spouse, an eligible retirement plan is an individual 
retirement account or individual retirement annuity. Effective for 
distributions made after December 31, 2001, an eligible retirement plan 
shall also mean an annuity contract described in Section 403(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and an eligible plan under Section 457(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code which is maintained by a state, political 



 

subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or 
political subdivision of a state and which agrees to separately account 
for amounts transferred into such plan from this Plan.    

(c) Distributee. A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In 
addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse is a 
distributee with regard to the interest of the spouse. Effective as of 
January 1, 2008, an Employee’s or former Employee’s non-spouse 
Beneficiary is a distributee with regard to the interest of the Employee 
or former Employee.  

(d) Direct rollover. A direct rollover is a payment by the plan to the eligible 
retirement plan specified by the distributee. Effective as of January 1, 
2008, a non-spouse Beneficiary may make a direct rollover only to an 
“inherited” individual retirement account as described in Section 408(b) 
of the Internal Revenue Code.  If a non-spouse beneficiary receives a 
distribution from the plan, the distribution is not eligible for a “60-day” 
rollover.   

 
(3) Retiree medical premiums for public safety officers. The system may allow 

a public safety officer to elect a tax free distribution of up to $3,000 
annually directly to a retiree medical plan for long term care insurance on 
a pre-tax basis, so long as the public safety officer separates from service 
either at the plan’s normal retirement age or due to his or her disability. 
Insurance premiums may be paid for the public safety officer, his spouse 
or his dependents while he is alive, but once he is deceased, the benefit 
ceases and may not by used by his spouse or beneficiaries to pay for their 
insurance premiums. Insurance premium payments may only be made 
directly to the insurance company. “Public safety officers” include law 
enforcement officers, firefighters, chaplains, rescue crew members or 
ambulance crew members. 

 
 
Section 2. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.  All ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
Section 3.   Effective Date.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 

upon adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING this ___ day of _________, 2015, on a motion made by 

________________ and seconded by _______________. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this __ day of ______, 2015, on a 
motion made by __________________ and seconded by ________________________. 

 
 

Vice Mayor Petralanda ___    
Councilman Windrem  ___    
Councilman Bain  ____    
Councilman Lob  ____    
Mayor Garcia   ____ 

 
 
             

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
              
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
           
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 

 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 –  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PROVIDING FOR THE 
THIRD BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2014-2015 
BUDGET; BY RECLASSIFYING THE STAFFORD 
PARK RENOVATION PROJECT FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND INTO THE CAPITAL PROJECTS 
FUND; RECORDING THE STATE GRANT FOR THE 
SENIOR CENTER OPERATIONS FUND; 
INCREASING THE GENERAL FUND FROM THE 
CITY’S DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES TO FUND 
ADDITIONAL PURCHASES AND EXPENSES 
AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY COUNCIL; PROVIDING 
INTENT; SPECIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH 
BUDGETARY PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES; 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Charter prohibits any City department from incurring expenditures 

in excess of the department’s approved budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has reclassified the Stafford Park Renovation 

Project into the Capital Projects Fund of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects budget in 
order to reimburse the General Fund budget for the $51,949 previously advanced for the 
project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has recorded the State Grant of $40,600 

received for Senior Center in the Senior Center Operations Fund of the Special Revenue and 
Capital Projects Budget; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has increased the General Fund in the total 

amount of $29,266, from the City’s designated Fund Balances, in order to cover the cost of 
Police Department Laptops ($8,000), One Percent (1%) reduction in police Department 
Pension contributions ($10,866),  and for a Trane Service contract for City Hall air 
conditioning ($10,400); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the transfer and budgetary 

establishment previously set forth herein are both proper and appropriate, in accordance with 
generally accepted municipal accounting principles, and in the best interests of the City and 
its citizens: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby approves and 

authorizes the budgetary amendments and appropriations to the various revenues and 
expenditures of the budgets and funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 



2 

 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council approvals and authorizations evidenced herein are 

intended to provide the City with the means to accomplish the purposes and projects identified 
in the recitals of this Resolution and the Exhibit attached hereto. 

 
Section 3:   That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has authorized and 

approved the foregoing budgetary amendments, increases and appropriations in order to 
comply with generally accepted budgetary processes and procedures. 

 
Section 4:  That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 
this    day of   , 2015, on a motion by     and seconded 
by    . 

 
Vice Mayor Best        
Councilman Bain        
Councilwoman Buckner       
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia      
  

 
 
             

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2014-15  Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Amended Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 3 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $6,977,607 $6,977,607
Excise Taxes 2,556,000               2,556,000               
Licenses & Permits 974,700                  974,700                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,946,297               -                              1,946,297               
Charges for Services 2,292,361               2,292,361               
Fines & Forfeitures 462,682                  462,682                  
Miscellaneous 261,900                  261,900                  
Proceeds from debt 96,949                    -                             -           96,949                    
Fund Balance 67,063                    ($22,683) -           44,380                    

Total General Fund $15,635,559 ($22,683) $15,612,876
Expenditures

City Council 150,945 150,945
City Manager 354,311   354,311
City Clerk 310,013   310,013
City Attorney 171,000  171,000
Human Resources 209,474  209,474
Finance-Administration 462,560 462,560
Finance-Professional Services 277,693 277,693
Information Technology 335,516 335,516
Planning 101,698 101,698
Police 6,027,921 18,866 3,5 6,046,787
Building, Zoning, and Code Enforcement 650,717 650,717
Public Works 1,659,971 10,400 4 1,670,371
Recreation & Culture 2,449,129 (51,949) 1 2,397,180
Golf Operations 1,739,586   1,739,586
Transfers to other funds 567,154 567,154
Budgeted Increase to reserves 167,871   167,871

Total General Fund 15,635,559 (22,683) 15,612,876

Sanitation Operations 2,346,945   2,346,945

Stormwater Operations 510,368   510,368

Total Enterprise Funds 2,857,313 $0 $2,857,313
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 578,273  $578,273

Senior Center Operations 366,762 40,600 2 407,362

Capital Projects 1,133,918 51,949 1 1,185,867

Law Enforcement Trust 142,762  142,762
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 2,221,715 $92,549 $2,314,264

      
G.O. Bonds - Series 1997 1,194,445 $1,194,445

Total Debt Service  1,194,445 $1,194,445
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $21,909,032 $69,866 $21,978,898

Legend:    
 
 
1) To reclassify Stafford Park renovation project cost of $51,949 to be reimbursed with proceeds from pool project loan
 
 2) Record state grant for the Senior Center
 
 3) Use $8,000 of designated fund balance for police laptops

 4) Use $10,400 of designated fund balance for a Trane service contract for City Hall Air conditioning maintenance
 

 5) Use $10,866 of designted fund balance to reduce Police pension contributions by 1%

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - __________  
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF 
GOLF CHARGES AND FEES FOR THE OPERATION OF 
THE MIAMI SPRINGS GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB; 
RESERVING THE RIGHT AND AUTHORITY TO AMEND 
OR SUPPLEMENT THE SCHEDULE OF CHARGES; 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs purchased the property commonly known 
as the Miami Springs Golf and Country Club on October 23, 1997; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs established an initial 
Schedule of Golf Charges and Fees for the Golf and Country Club by Resolution 97-
3066, adopted on October 13, 1997; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs most recently amended 
its Schedule of Golf Charges and Fees for the operation of the Golf and Country Club 
by adopting Resolution No. 2014-3633 on October 27, 2014; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Administrative Staff has proposed an amended Schedule of 
Golf Charges and Fees for the operation of the golf course, which may from time to time 
be further amended; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed amended Schedule and 
has determined that the amended Schedule of Golf Charges and Fees is both fair and 
appropriate, and that its approval is in the best interests of the City and its citizens. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 

 
Section 1: That the “Schedule of Golf Charges and Fees”, attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A”, is hereby approved and adopted for the use of City of Miami Springs Golf 
and Country Club facilities and related services. 

 
Section 2: That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs reserves the right 

and authority to amend or supplement the “Schedule of Golf Charges and Fees”.  
 
Section 3: That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption by the City Council. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, 
Florida, this ____ day of _________, 2014, on a motion by _____________________ 
and seconded by ___________________. 

 
Vice Mayor Best  ____ 
Councilman Bain  ____    
Councilwoman Buckner ____    
Councilman Petralanda ____    
Mayor Garcia  ____  

 
 
 
 



              
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:           
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 
MIAMI SPRINGS GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB 
SCHEDULE OF GOLF CHARGES AND FEES 

AS OF APRIL 15, 2015 
 

GREEN & CART FEES**                  
        
RACK RATES 
Weekend Non-Resident    $ 60.00   
Weekday Non-Resident    $ 55.00  
Weekend South Florida Resident   $ 45.00 
Weekday South Florida Resident   $ 35.00 
Weekend Miami Springs/VG Resident  $ 30.00 
Weekday Miami Springs/VG Resident  $ 25.00 
Weekday/Weekend Miami Springs/VG Walker  $ 23.00 (after 12 noon on weekends) 
Public Guest & Miami-Dade County Residents $ 30.00 (no walkers until after 1 pm) 
Twilight Weekday     $ 30.00 (after 12 noon) 
Twilight Weekend     $ 30.00 (after 1 p.m.) 
Junior Weekday/Weekend    $ 15.00 (accompanied by paying adult) 
Member Cart Fee     $ 22.00 
Tuesday Shootout     $ 28.00  
Public Service Employee Weekend   $ 32.00  
Public Service Employee Weekday   $ 25.00 
CanAm Rate Weekend/Weekday   $ 40.00 
Summer Discount Golf Cards Weekend  $ 35.00 
Summer Discount Golf Cards Weekday  $ 25.00 
Premier Card-Weekend    $      35.00  
Premier Card-Weekday    $ 30.00  
Spectator Cart      $ 25.00 
Small Range Balls     $  7.00 
Large Range Balls     $      10.00 
 
Driving Range Membership $100.00 value for $75.00 or $75.00 value for $60.00 
 
Golf Teams FREE Practice, matches and driving range for MSSH and 

MSMS 
 
Seniors over 60 years old receive a 10% discount from above rates 
 
NOTE: All fees include State Sales Tax (currently 7%) 
 
 
Eligibility for any qualified fee or charge (residency, age, family, employment) must be documented.  
**See DEFINITIONS on next page. 
 
SUMMER MEMBERSHIPS                                                                          

 
MIAMI SPRINGS RESIDENT, BUSINESS & PROPERTY OWNER 
Individual     $   300.00 
Family      $   425.00 
Junior (under 17)    $    60.00 
Driving Range Membership   $   100.00 value for $75.00  
       $    75.00 value for $50.00    
NON-RESIDENT 
Individual     $   375.00 
Family      $   500.00 
Junior (under 17)    $    75.00 
 
All memberships plus State Sales Tax of 7% 



 
Exhibit “A” 
Page 2 
 
DEFINITIONS 
Junior - less than 17 years old 
Resident - resides in Miami Springs/Virginia Gardens 
Business Owner - registered owner of a business in Miami Springs 
Property Owner - registered owner of a property in Miami Springs 
Family - limited to immediate family (father, mother, & children under 25) living in same household 
Public Service Employee rate - Police, Firemen, Teachers, Active Military and City of Miami Springs    
Employees 

Weekends include Federal and City of Miami Springs designated holidays (ex. Thanksgiving Friday) 
Summer Discount Cards includes: SFPGA, Lung, Heart, Dade County Patron Card, and the Premier 
Card 
 
Eligibility for any qualified fee or charge (residency, age, family, employment) must be documented. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -   

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL THE CITY OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
TO APPLY FOR, AND ACCEPT, IF AWARDED, A $30,000 
2015 URBAN AND COMMUNITY FORESTRY GRANT 
WITH THE STATE OF FLORIDA ON AN EQUAL OR 
GREATER MATCHING AMOUNT BASIS; DIRECTING THE 
PROPER OFFICERS AND OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO 
EXECUTE THE GRANT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
WITH THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF 
AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES, FLORIDA 
FOREST SERVICE; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the existing tree canopy and designations as a “Tree City USA” are 
sources of great pride to the City of Miami Springs and its citizens; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs is desirous of applying for a 2015 Urban 
and Community Forestry Grant which would provide monies in which to help fund  a 
tree inventory to benefit and assist with the management and preservation of  the 
community's tree canopy for improvement of the urban environment within the State of 
Florida; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed grant award of $30,000 would be specifically 
conditioned upon the City’s equal or greater match for the total cost of the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is desirous of authorizing the proper officers and 
officials of the City to apply for, and accept, if awarded, the matching 2015 Urban and 
Community Forestry Grant: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MIAMI 
SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 

Section 1: That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby supports the 
forestry grant program and authorizes the City to apply for, and accept, if awarded, a 
$30,000 Urban and Community Forestry Grant with the State of Florida on an equal or 
greater matching amount basis.  
 

Section 2: That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby directs the 
proper officers and officials of the City to execute the required Memorandum of 
Agreement between the City of Miami Springs and Florida Department of Agriculture 
and Consumer Services to secure the grant award. 

 



Section 3: That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately 
upon adoption by the City Council. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, 

Florida, this ____ day of _________, 2014, on a motion by _____________________ 
and seconded by ___________________. 

 
Vice Mayor Best  ____ 
Councilman Bain  ____    
Councilwoman Buckner ____    
Councilman Petralanda ____    
Mayor Garcia  ____  

 
 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
 


























































































































































	Agenda Summary - April 27, 2015
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p.3
	Agenda Summary p. 4

	3A Yard of the Month - Smith
	3B Yard of the Month - Miami Springs Woman's Club
	5A Minutes - April 13, 2015 Special Meeting
	5B Minutes - April 13, 2015 Regular Meeting
	8A Approval of Howard's Fertilizer Expenditure
	8B Approval of Aeration Tech. Expenditure
	8C Approval of Harrell Expenditure
	8D Approval of Growers Equipment Expenditure
	8E Approval of Computer Electric Contract Renewal
	8F Approval of Firepower Displays Expenditure
	9A Board Appointments
	9B Aquatics Center Discussion
	9C Execution of Craven Thompson Contract for Professional Services
	10A First Reading - Ordinance on Retirement System
	10B First Reading - Ordinance on Amending Pension Plan for General Employees
	10C First Reading - Ordinance on Amending Pension Plan for Police and Fire
	10D Resolution - Third Budget Amendment
	10E Resolution - Amending Golf Fees and Charges 
	10F Resolution - Urban and Forestry Grant
	10G Quality Cities Magazine Advertisment
	10H Approval of Expenditure to Awning Universal at Golf Course
	10I Setting a Date for Special Meeting and Memorila Day Regular Meeting Conflict
	11A Authorization for Outside Counsel
	11B 2nd Quarter Budget Status



